
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Planning Committee 

Wednesday 16 November 2022 

6.00 pm 

Fourth Floor Meeting Room, Addenbrooke House, Ironmasters Way, 

Telford TF3 4NT 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Kieran Robinson 01952 382061 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors C F Smith (Chair), G L Offland (Vice-Chair), 

G H Cook, N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, 

J Jones, J Loveridge and P J Scott 

 Substitutes Councillors V A Fletcher, E J Greenaway, 

J E Lavery, I Preece, G C W Reynolds, K S Sahota, 

W L Tomlinson, B Wennington and D R W White 

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

3 - 6 

4.0   Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 

 

5.0   Site Visits 
 

 

6.0   Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Please note that the order in which applications are heard may be changed at 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

the meeting.  If Members have queries about any of the applications, they are 
requested to raise them with the relevant Planning Officer prior to the 
Committee meeting. 
 

6.1   TWC/2021/0101 - Yard 5, Rookery Road, Telford, Shropshire, TF2 9BW 
 

7 - 22 

6.2   TWC/2022/0573 - Former Woodside Social Club & land adjacent, 
Woodside Avenue, Woodside, Telford, Shropshire 
 

23 - 60 

 
 

Page 2



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday 19 

October 2022 at 6.00 pm in 4th Floor Meeting Room, Addenbrooke 
House, Ironmasters Way, Telford TF3 4NT 

 
 
Present: Councillors C F Smith (Chair), G H Cook, N A Dugmore, 

I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, J Jones and P J Scott and B 
Wennington (as substitute for J Loveridge) 

 
In Attendance:  A Annett (Planning Officer), S Hardwick (Lead Lawyer: 

Litigation & Regulatory), V Hulme (Service Delivery 
Manager: Development Management), K Robinson 
(Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)), and M Turner (Area Team 
Planning Manager – East) 

 
Apologies:   Councillors G L Offland and J Loveridge 
 
PC312 Declarations of Interest 
 
In respect of planning application TWC/2022/0210, Councillor Smith advised 
that he was a member of Wrockwardine Wood & Trench Parish Council but 
had not been involved in any discussions on this application. 
 
PC313 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
PC314 Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 
None. 
 
PC315 Site Visits 
 
None. 
 
PC316 Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Members had received a schedule of planning applications to be determined 
by the Committee and fully considered each report and the supplementary 
information tabled at the meeting regarding [each planning application] 
[planning applications REFERENCE and REFERENCE].  
 
PC317 TWC/20022/0210 - Site of 2 Elim Terrace, Trench Road, 

Trench, Telford, Shropshire 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

This was an application for the erection of one dwelling on the site of 2 Elim 
Terrace to be used as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) with a maximum 
of three lettable bedrooms. 
 
Councillor Stephen Reynolds, parish councillor, spoke against the application 
with concerns surrounding traffic levels and safety, existing drainage issues 
for residents, and the design of the proposed building. .  
 
The Planning Officer informed Members that a number of concerns ad been 
addressed in the report including increased traffic, parking arrangements, use 
as a HMO, and drainage. In terms of parking and traffic, it was appreciated 
that the road was often busy but it was considered that the increase 
associated with one dwelling would not have a significant impact. The parking 
provided by the development would be a betterment, reducing the parking 
space width on the main road and providing dedicated parking off road. The 
new access track would also mean users exited in forward gear, rather than 
reversing as they did prior to development. Concerns around trees and wildlife 
were acknowledged, a degree of felling and pruning had occurred prior to the 
application. However, a tree survey had been submitted and neither the 
Council’s tree nor ecology officer had raised any objections.  
 
Members were informed that the current application addressed the concerns 
that there had been raised in relation to the refusal of applications in 2015 and 
2020. These included access arrangements, the lack of a tree survey, and 
scale design and massing. 
 
Members raised issues around offsite trees, traffic, and parking. It was 
queried whether there could be a requirement for designated parking.  
 
Offsite trees were council owned and there were separate powers to protect 
them.  
 
On being put to the vote it was, unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED – that delegated authority be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to grant planning permission 
subject to the following Condition(s) and Informative(s): 
 
Condition(s): 
 
Time Limit 
Details of Materials to be Submitted 
Foul and Surface Water Drainage 
Landscape Design 
Tree Replacements 
Details of External Lighting to be Submitted 
Site Environmental Management Plan 
Parking, Turning, Loading and Unloading 
Tree & Hedge Protection 
Works in Accordance with the Approved Plans 

Page 4



 

 

Removal of all Permitted Development Rights 
 
Informative(s): 
 
Nesting Wild Birds 
Fire Authority 
Conditions 
Reasons for Grant of Planning Permission 
 
PC318 TWC/2022/0804 - Land west of, Hollinshead Way, Old Park, 

Telford, Shropshire 
 
This was an s73 application to vary conditions on previously granted consent 
that allowed the import of soil for surcharging. The 2016 consent had been 
implemented but had not been completed. The consent conditioned HGV 
routing to ensure the eastern access to the site was used, deliveries between 
7am and 7pm avoiding school pick up times, and an ecology survey. The 
2018 variation allowed for the import of soil in an ad hoc manner and the 
creation of the labelled Mound A up to 5m in height. Mound A stood at 2m in 
height meaning that there was still capacity to the 5m limit.  
 
The application proposed the importation of clean soil to the site in order to 
carry out surcharging works to improve ground strength and to monitor the 
settlement of the ground. All works would be carried out within the 4,500sqm 
site identified on the submitted Block Plan as ‘Mound B’. This would not been 
done on an ad hoc basis but brought to the site over a one month period with 
130 a lorries a day from the donor site in the town centre. The access 
condition would need to be varied for western access to the site. An amended 
route plan had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting.  
 
Due to the increased intensity of importation, the original hours of 
transportation were no longer considered appropriate. New hours had been 
negotiated with transit permitted between 7:30am and 4:30pm.  
 
The plans worked towards the Council’s carbon neutral ambitions in that the 
soil would not be being transported out of the Borough to landfill.  
 
Members raised points relating to the possible impact on retail and queried 
when the transport would likely start. 
 
Officers stated that the movement of soil was not thought to be imminent but 
there was no set start date. 
 
On being put to the vote it was, by a majority: 
 
RESOLVED – that the Committee grant planning permission to the 
Development Management Service Delivery Manager, subject to the 
following: 
 

Page 5



 

 

A) No further representations being received during what remains of 
the consultation period which raise material considerations which 
are, in the opinion of the Development Management Service 
Delivery Manager after consultation with the Chair of Planning 
Committee, of such significance that the application should be 
reported back to Planning Committee for re-consideration and 
determination. 

 
B) The following Condition(s) and Informative(s) (with authority to 

finalise and impose additional Conditions to be delegated to the 
Development Management Service Delivery Manager): 

 
A04 Full with No Reserved Matters   
 
B150 Constructive Environmental Management Plan (to include anti-

mud measures) 
 

B049 Pre-works and post-works survey on highway/access condition 
 
C020 Works in Accordance with Traffic Management/Routing Plan   
 
Ccust Chemical Certification 
 
C38 Development in Accordance with Plans 
 
D11 Hours of Work 
 
C091 Works in Accordance with Ecological Report 
 
The meeting ended at 6.39 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday 16 November 2022 

 

Page 6



 

 

 

TWC/2021/0101  
Yard 5, Rookery Road, Telford, Shropshire, TF2 9BW 
Removal of conditions 1-5 and variation of condition 6 on planning application 
TWC/2015/0742 to allow proposed changes to conditions relating to noise mitigation, 
appearance, ground conditions and site layout ***NOISE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
AND MANAGEMENT PLAN & DUST ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 
RECEIVED***  
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
,  Mr Hill 20/01/2021 
 
PARISH WARD 
Wrockwardine Wood and Trench Priorslee 
 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN CALLED TO COMMITTEE AT THE REQUEST 
OF CLLR. VERONICA FLETCHER 
 
Online planning file:  
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?Applicationnumber=TWC/2021/0101 
 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the 

Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL 

PLANNING PERMISSION subject to Condition(s) and Informative(s). 

 
2. APPLICATION SITE 
 
2.1 The application site is located off Rookery Road in the St. Georges area of 

Telford and is currently owned by ADW Aggregates Ltd. The site extends to 
approximately 0.82 hectares and is located on the eastern section of a well-
established industrial area, bordered on all sides by land uses of a similar 
industrial nature with exception to residential properties to the east.  Access to 
the site is gained from an industrial road which joints the public highway at 
Rookery Road. 

 
2.2 To the south of the site there are a number of existing porta-cabin buildings 

which are used for offices and staff welfare facilities. Close to the site access 
there is a space reserved for staff and visitor car parking. Towards the centre 
of the site there is an existing weighbridge for lorries/trucks entering and 
exiting the site. To the north of the site is where the aggregate recycling 
operates from and includes areas reserved for receiving and stock piling of 
various aggregates. 

 
2.3 The site is self-contained and well screened by existing vegetation. Steel 

fencing around the site ensures its security. The closest neighbouring 
properties to the site are situated approximately 40-50 metres to the east off 
Kenwray Drive and these are separated from the application site by a large 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6a

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?Applicationnumber=TWC/2021/0101
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?Applicationnumber=TWC/2021/0101


 

 

 

embankment and tall vegetation. These properties are raised above the 
application site and are well screened by an established buffer zone. 

 

3. APPLICATION DETAILS 

 

3.1 The site has planning permission as a motor vehicle recycling point with 

ancillary car sales and storage, vehicle depollution workshop, aggregate 

recycling facility including the importation, storage and treatment of non-

hazardous inert and excavation materials and the erection of a recycling 

building. A number of Conditions were attached to the consent, 

TWC/2015/0742, to manage hours of operation, height of aggregate material 

stored on site and the construction of a treatment building. 

 

3.2 This Section 73 application seeks planning permission for the removal of 

Conditions 1-5 and Variation of Condition 6 on planning application 

TWC/2015/0742 to allow proposed changes to Conditions relating to noise 

mitigation, appearance, ground conditions and site layout. 

 

3.3 Conditions 1-5 of TWC/2015/0742 all relate to submission of details relating to 

the treatment building approved under the 2015 consent. The purpose of the 

treatment building was to enclose a 360º excavator, crusher and screener 

when they were operating concurrently on site. The Applicant advises that 

these operations will not all operate concurrently on site and they have 

removed End-of-Life Vehicle operation from their Environmental Permit (EP). 

For these reasons the Applicant considers the treatment building is no longer 

required and seeks to remove the Conditions requiring submission of further 

details for it. 

 

3.4 Condition 6 of TWC/2015/0742 lists the approved drawings and if the removal 

of Conditions 1-5 is granted consent then Condition 6 will require varying in 

order to remove the approved drawings showing the treatment building. The 

Applicant also advises that as the End-of-Life Vehicle operation is no longer 

present on site, the previously approved plans showing it also need removing 

from the permission and replacing with new plans. 

 

3.5 The Environment Agency (EA) confirmed at the time of the first round of 

consultation that an application to vary the Environmental Permit to this effect 

was under consideration. The Applicant has since provided evidence to the 

LPA that this Permit has been granted. 

 

3.6 The previous planning permission granted consent for, inter alia, car crushing 

on-site and hence the Conditions attached to that permission required the 

crushing activities to be undertaken within the treatment building when 

excavating and screening were also taking place on site. The Applicant 

Page 8



 

 

 

advises the crushing activity will take place on a monthly basis and hired in 

when required, thereby not representing a continuous activity. Only the 

screener and excavator (for loading) will operate at the same time during site 

operations. 

 

3.7 As the car crushing will no longer be taking place at the same time as the 

excavating and screening activities the Applicant has applied to remove the 

Conditions that relate to the construction of the treatment building required to 

house the equipment when all three activities were taking place 

simultaneously. 

 

3.8 The Applicant has provided the following additional information: 

 

 The crushing activity will also only operate during a weekday between the 

hours of 0900-1700; 

 The processing will be undertaken on the ground and not on top of any 

stockpiles; 

 The processing will be undertaken to the west of the site and it is 

considered noise will be screened from the existing stockpiles requiring 

processing and the existing 10-15 metres high earth bund to the east of 

the application site; 

 It is not suitable from a logistical point of view to have a fixed area for 

crushing or other processing activities as the equipment will need to be 

moved to the stockpiles which need processing to avoid double handling 

of the material which will nonetheless cause other amenity issues such as 

dust; 

 The movement and loading of HGVs to /from the site is already a 

consented and the site is located in a well-established industrial estate 

where these movements are frequent. 

 

3.9 The Agent advised during the course of the application that the Applicant is a 

relatively recent owner of the site and many of the historical complaints 

related to the previous owner. 

 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

 
4.1 W98/0445 - Change-of-Use of land to a waste transfer station - Refused, 19 

October 1998, Appeal Dismissed, 21 December 1999 
 
4.2 W2002/1142 - Change-of-Use of land to motor vehicle recycling point with 

ancillary car sales and siting of a storage container and porta-cabin 
(Retrospective) - Full Granted, 31 March 2004 

 
4.3 W2004/0973 - Extension of site area and construction of vehicle de-pollution 

workshop - Full Granted, 03 February 2005 

Page 9



 

 

 

 
4.4 TWC/2015/0742 - Resubmission of TWC/2014/1131 for the Change-of-Use of 

part of the site from car sales, storage and vehicle depollution workshop to 
motor vehicle recycling point with ancillary car sales and storage, vehicles 
depollution workshop, aggregate recycling facility including the importation, 
storage and treatment of non-hazardous inert and excavation materials and 
the erection of a recycling building (Part-retrospective) - Full Granted, 10 
February 2016 
 

4.5 TWC/2016/1120 - Variation of Condition 1 of TWC/2015/0742 to allow the 

treatment building to be constructed on site and be fully operational by 17 

February 2017 and removal of Condition 3 to remove the need for additional 

ground works - Full Granted, 10 February 2017 

 

5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS 

 

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

5.2 Telford and Wrekin Local Plan (2011-2031): 

 

SP1: Telford 

SP4: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

EC2: Employment in the Urban Area 

NE1: Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

NE2: Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 

NE6: Green Network 

C3: Implications of Development on Highways 

BE1: Design Criteria 

BE9: Land Stability 

ER7: Waste Management Facilities 

ER11: Sewerage Systems and Water Quality  

 

6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

 

6.1 The application has been publicised through direct neighbour notification. Two 

stages of consultation have taken place, the second further to receipt of 

revised dust assessment and management plan, and revised noise 

assessment. 

 

6.2 The Local Planning Authority received 61no. neighbour representations (from 

54no. addresses) objecting to the scheme on the basis of the first 

consultation, the following summarised issues were raised: 

 

 Excessive noise arising from site operations during and outside of 

normal working hours detrimentally impacts amenity; 

Page 10



 

 

 

 Existing dust and air pollution arising from site operations with potential 

to increase and detrimentally impact amenity; 

 An increase in the site area of expansion of site would increase 

pollution and disturbance; 

 Noise and pollution abatement systems are needed to mitigate these 

concerns; 

 What external monitoring provision will be put in place as set out in the 

revised Noise Impact Assessment? 

 Applicant’s business should relocate to an industrial area; 

 Expanding the car breaking operation is not fair to residents; 

 Roads are already busy with traffic and proposals would lead to an 

increase in Traffic; 

 Damage has been caused to roads by HGVs and these will deteriorate 

further; 

 Negative impact on wildlife and ecology in the area; 

 Mound of soil on site may topple over and spill into gardens or onto 

nearby children’s play area; 

 Applicant has not responded to residents’ complaints; 

 There are enough properties on adjacent housing estate; 

 Devaluation of property. 

 

6.2  The second round of consultation is due to expire on 14 November 2022 and 

any comments received will be reported to Planning Committee. 

 

7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS 

 

7.1 Wrockwardine Wood and Trench Parish Council: No Comment 

 

7.2 St Georges and Priorslee Parish Council: Comment 

 

This site does not lie within the Parish. Despite the submission of an Updated 

Noise Impact Assessment the St Georges & Priorslee Parish Council has 

concerns that the proposals will adversely affect residential properties on the 

Timbers estate and along Gower Street and Stafford Street which are within 

the Parish. Given the proximity to residential areas the Parish Council wants 

to retain Conditions relating to noise and dust abatement. There is also 

concern that skip lorries will travel to the site along Stafford Street and Gower 

Street resulting in noise and dust nuisance. 

 

7.3 Highways: No Objection: 

 

Page 11



 

 

 

 Rookery Road is private for its entire length and as such the Local 

Highway Authority has no particular jurisdiction over its extant use, future 

use, past maintenance or continued upkeep in the future; 

 

 There is no public right of passage along Rookery Road except for those 

secured privately either with the owner of the road or established over time 

under prescriptive process. The junction that Rookery Road makes with 

Gower Street is within the control of the Highway Authority but there is 

nothing about this application which robustly indicates a demonstrable 

negative impact on highway safety or road capacity in the area and 

therefore it does not trigger the NPPF test under Para.111; 

 

 Notwithstanding the above and without prejudice the Local Highway 

Authority would advise a comprehensive resurface of Rookery Road 

between Gower Street and the site, in order to help mitigate the future 

noise and vibration of HGVs on it, as the road falls into further disrepair. 

The road is not identified as being under the control of the Applicant, from 

the application material submitted, however, there would be significant 

merit in any discussions that the Applicant could have with the owner of 

the road, with a view to securing improvements in the near future; 

 

 The matter of the private access road is not a material highways 

consideration, in its determination of this application, and the LHA’s formal 

recommendation to the LPA is no objection with a request for no 

Condition(s) or Informative(s). 

 

7.4 Arboriculture and Ecology: No Comment 

 

7.5 Drainage: Comment that the drainage Conditions on TWC/2015/0742 remain 

applicable. 

 

7.6 Environment Agency: Comment: 

 

 This site is regulated by the EA under the Environmental Permitting 

Regulations (EPR) 2016; 

 The site’s Environmental Permit (EP) is comprised of the conditions 

outlined in two standard rules sets – SR2010No12 and SR2011No3.; 

 The SR2010No12 standard rules set covers ‘Treatment of waste to 

produce soil, soil substitutes and aggregate’; 

 The SR2011No3 standard rules set covers ‘Vehicle storage, depollution 

and dismantling’;  

 Recent site inspections have shown that the activities permitted under 

SR2011No3 have ceased; 

Page 12



 

 

 

 On the 7 January 2021 the operator (Applicant) submitted to the EA a 

partial surrender application to remove the conditions outlined in 

SR2011No3 from their EP. 

 Treatment Building: The operating techniques listed in section 2.4 of 

SR2010No12 do not require the permitted activities to be undertaken 

inside a treatment building. Table 2.4 of SR2010No12 states, ‘…all 

permitted wastes shall be stored and treated on hardstanding or on an 

impermeable surface with sealed drainage system.’ 

 Potential Amenity Issues: The site’s EP will seek to control the emission 

of substances not controlled by emission limits (for example, dust) through 

an Emissions Management Plan. This is a reactive measure if the 

permitted activities give rise to pollution. The EP will seek to control noise 

and vibration through a Noise and Vibration Management Plan if noise and 

vibration at levels likely to cause pollution outside the site are perceived by 

an authorised officer of the Environment Agency. Please note, there is no 

numerical decibel (dB) limit in place on the site’s EP. 

 

 To date no reports of dust, noise or vibration pollution problems have been 

received for this site or subsequently investigated by the EA; 

 The Environmental Noise Assessment (3341-1697-E_Environmental 

Noise Assessment_v1.0) as submitted, suggests that the impacts of noise 

are low with respect to BS4142:2014. 

 

7.7 Coal Authority: No Objection: 

 

 No objection to the removal of Condition 3 (mitigation in accordance with 

Coal Mining Risk Assessment). 

 

7.8 Ministry of Defence: Support subject to Conditions: 

 

Condition: The operation of the crusher shall be restricted to a maximum of 2 

weekdays per calendar month, between the hours of 1000 and 1400, with 

prior notification for nearby residents. There shall be no working on Saturday, 

Sundays or Bank, National or Public Holidays. 

 

7.9 Shropshire Fire Service: Comment: Consideration should be given to the 

‘Fire Safety Guidance’ document. 

 

7.10 West Mercia Police: Comment: Provide general design guidance. 

 

8. APPRAISAL 

 

Page 13



 

 

 

8.1 Having regard to the development plan policy and other material 
considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 
the planning application raises the following main issues: 

 

 Principle of Development 

 Impact on Amenity of Adjacent Properties 

 Highways Impacts 

 Drainage 

 Ecology and Trees 

 
8.2 Principle of Development  
 
8.2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

that planning applications must be determined in accordance with the adopted 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this 
instance, the development plan consists of the Telford and Wrekin Local Plan 
(TWLP). The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out policy 
guidance at a national level and is a material consideration in planning 
decisions. 

 
8.2.2 The principle of this use on this site is established. The matter to consider is 

whether the removal of Conditions pertaining to the treatment building would 
have a material impact upon amenity, highways and/or ecology that would 
warrant refusal of the change to the conditions. 

 
8.2.3 A number of objections have made reference to the expansion of the site 

being unacceptable. For clarity, the application is not seeking to expand the 

site or extend its boundaries in any way. 

 

8.3 Impact on the Amenity of Adjacent Properties 

 

8.3.1 Policy BE1(xi) of the Local Plan states the Council will support development 

which demonstrates that there is no significant adverse impact on nearby 

properties by noise, dust, odour or light pollution or that new development 

does not prejudice or undermine existing surrounding uses. The majority of 

public objections to this application focus on loss of amenity arising from noise 

and dust. 

 

8.3.2 The Applicant has submitted a Noise Assessment and Management Plan 

(NAMP), which has been assessed by the Council’s Environmental Health 

Specialist and amended in accordance with their recommendations. As the 

plant used on site is mobile and may operate anywhere within the site, all 

calculations were made from the nearest boundary to the each sensitive 

receptor, in order to present a robust assessment. The nearest noise sensitive 

receivers have been identified off Kenwray Drive 53 metres (east) and 

residential properties 50 metres (north) of the site. 

Page 14



 

 

 

8.3.3 The calculations in the NAMP noise emissions of the operations undertaken 

within the site would indicate a ‘low impact’ as defined in BS B4142: 2014 

subject to proposed mitigation and suggestions. 

 

8.3.4 The NAMP states the main sources of noise which could arise from the site 

operations are as follows: 

 

 Skip lorries/HGVs travelling to and from the site for delivery / collection of 

soils and aggregates; 

 Loading of material into mechanical treatment plants i.e. screener, 

crusher; 

 Operation the of the mechanical treatment plant (screener, crusher); 

 Loading material into vehicles for removal off site; 

 Manoeuvring of plant around the site; 

 Small vehicles travelling to and from the site (e.g. staff and visitor’s cars, 

courier van deliveries etc.) 

 Repairs. 

 

The NAMP sets out a table of how noise sources from the site will be 

managed and mitigated. Following amendment and refinement the Council’s 

Environmental Health Specialist supports the contents of the NAMP and 

recommends a Condition ensuring development in accordance with it. 

 

8.3.5 The Applicant has also submitted a Dust Assessment and Management Plan 

(DAMP) which has been reviewed by the Council’s Environmental Health 

Specialist and amended in line with their recommendations. The DAMP sets 

out management and mitigation measures designed to minimise the 

distribution of dust arising from the site and a Condition is recommended 

ensuring development in accordance with the DAMP. 

 

8.3.6 The original planning consent includes a Condition restricting hours of 

operation and it is proposed to retain this as it is. Furthermore, the Applicant 

has advised that the crusher will be hired in when required (a maximum of 

twice per month) between the hours of 1000 and 1400 on weekdays only with 

prior notification for nearby residents. The MoD has requested that these 

arrangements be secured by planning conditions and this is considered 

appropriate.  

8.3.7 Taking the above matters into account, it is considered that appropriate 

mitigation measures are proposed to appropriately manage any pollution or 

noise arising from site operations, such that the site may continue without 

impacting unacceptably upon residential amenity. 

 

8.4 Highways 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

8.4.1 The Council’s Highway Engineer advises that Rookery Road is private for its 

entire length and the Local Highway Authority has no jurisdiction over its use, 

maintenance or upkeep. There is no public right of passage along Rookery 

Road except for those secured privately either with the owner of the road or 

established over time. 

 

8.4.2 The junction that Rookery Road makes with Gower Street is within the control 

of the Local Highway Authority, however, this application would not trigger the 

NPPF test under Para.111 which states that development should only be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 

impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 

network would be severe. 

 

8.4.3 The LHA has advised a comprehensive resurface of Rookery Road between 

Gower Street and the site would be beneficial, in order to help mitigate the 

future noise and vibration of HGVs on it. However, as the road is not identified 

as being under the control of the Applicant this cannot be achieved within the 

parameters of this planning application. It would be a civil matter between the 

Applicant and the owner of the road. 

 

8.4.4 This request has been put to the Applicant and they have advised they are 

willing to approach the owner of the road and discuss the matter. This would 

be at their own discretion and outside the control of the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

8.5 Arboriculture and Ecology 

 

8.5.1 The Council’s Arboricultural Officer and Ecology raise no objection to the 

Variation of Conditions 1-5 as proposed, or the removal of Condition 6. 

 

8.6 Drainage 

 

8.6.1 The Council’s Drainage Engineer has advised they have no objections to the 

proposal subject to the inclusion of Conditions attached to TWC/2015/0742. 

Members are asked to note there are no drainage Conditions attached to the 

2015 consent and therefore none would be applicable to this s.73 Application. 

 

8.7 Other Matters 

 

8.7.1 Several neighbour representations were received citing devaluation of 

property as an objection. This is not a material planning consideration and 

therefore cannot be taken into account in the determination of this planning 

application. 

Page 16



 

 

 

 

8.7.2 One neighbour representation objected to the proposals on the grounds that 

enough residential development has taken place on the adjacent housing 

estates already. This planning application is not applying for further housing. 

 

9. CONCLUSION 

 

9.1 On balance, it is considered that the proposal is compliant with Policies BE1 

and C3 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031. The principle of 

development is already established through TWC/2015/0742 and the Noise 

Assessment and Management Plan, along with the Dust Assessment and 

Management Plan, set out appropriate mitigation measures to ensure 

neighbouring residential receptors are not unacceptably impacted by dust, 

noise or other forms of pollution. 

 

9.2 The proposal is therefore deemed to be compliant with the Telford & Wrekin 

Local Plan 2011-2031 and the guidance contained within the NPPF. 

 

10. DETAILED RECOMMENDATION  

 
10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning 

Committee on this application is to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION to the 
Development Management Service Delivery Manager, subject to the 
following: 

 
A) The following conditions (with authority to finalise conditions and reasons for 

approval to be delegated to Development Management Service Delivery 

Manager): 

 
Development in Accordance with Plans 
Development in Accordance with Dust Management Plan 
Development in Accordance with Noise Management Plan 
Hours of Operation 
Hours of Operation of Crusher Restricted to Maximum 2 days per month 
Restriction on raw stock material height 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAWING TITLE

SITE LOCATION PLAN

SCALE @ A4

1:1,250

DRAWING NUMBER

003/2865/02

PROJECT/SITE

Rookery Road, St Georges, Telford TF2 9BW

CLIENT

ADW Aggregates Ltd

REV

-

JOB NO

002
CLIENT NO

2865

DRAWN

CP
DATE

06.01.21

STATUS

Issued

CHECKED

--

Waste, Planning and Environmental Consultants

Lime House, Road Two, Winsford, Cheshire, CW7 3QZ

NOTES

Drawing for indication only. Reproduced with the permission
of the controller of H.M.S.O. Crown copyright licence No.
100022432. This drawing is copyright and property of
Oaktree Environmental Ltd.

REVISION HISTORY

Rev Date

Init: Description:

Application boundary

- 08.1.21 CP Initial Drawing

t: 01606 558833 | e: sales@oaktree-environmental.co.uk

KEY:

0   m 5 0   m

S c a l e   B a r   ( 1 : 1 , 2 5 0 )

1 0 0   m

Page 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
ROOKERY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
123.7m



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAWING TITLE

SITE LAYOUT PLAN

SCALE @ A3

1:500

DRAWING NUMBER

003/2865/03

PROJECT/SITE

Rookery Road, St Georges, Telford TF2 9BW

CLIENT

ADW Aggregates Ltd

REV

-

JOB NO

002
CLIENT NO

2865

DRAWN

CP
DATE

20.01.21

STATUS

Issued

CHECKED

--

Waste, Planning and Environmental Consultants

Lime House, Road Two, Winsford, Cheshire, CW7 3QZ

NOTES

Drawing for indication only. Reproduced with the permission
of the controller of H.M.S.O. Crown copyright licence No.
100022432. This drawing is copyright and property of Oaktree
Environmental Ltd

REVISION HISTORY

Rev Date

Init: Description:

- 20.1.21 CP Initial Drawing

t: 01606 558833 | e: sales@oaktree-environmental.co.uk

Key:

Application boundary

Waste storage areas

Non-waste storage areas

Buildings

Hardstanding areas

0.6m thick lego block walls

Mains water point

Spill kit

Access routes for emergency vehicles

Existing 2.4m high palisade
fencing and 10-15m high
planted boundary to the

north & east

Existing 2.4m high palisade
fencing and 10-15m high
planted boundary to the

north & east

Existing 2.4m high
palisade fencing

Site access and
egress with

lockable gates

General storage
& parking area Site office

Product storage
& dispatch

Topsoil
storage

Processing area
including screening

and crushing

Product storage
& dispatch bays

Reception and storage
area for soils and stones

0   m 2 5   m 5 0   m

S c a l e   B a r   ( 1 : 5 0 0 )

Processed
soils/aggregates

Weighbridge Processed
soils/aggregates

Existing 2.4m high
palisade fencing

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2022/0573  
Former Woodside Social Club & land adjacent, Woodside Avenue, Woodside, 
Telford, Shropshire 
Erection of 33 no. unit care home with associated access, car parking and 
landscaping**Amended Plans and Reports**  
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Cairnwell Developments 08/07/2022 
 
PARISH WARD 
Madeley Woodside 

 
THIS APPLICATION IS A MAJOR APPLICATION AND REQUIRES A SECTION 106 

AGREEMENT, THIS APPLICATION IS TO BE DETERMINED BY MEMBERS OF 

THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Online planning file: 

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-

applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0573  

 

1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 

 

1.1 It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the 

Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL 

PLANNING PERMISSION subject to Condition(s), Informative(s) and the 

Applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement in respect of Bus Stop 

Upgrade Contributions, Travel Plan Monitoring, Biodiversity Net Gain, Tree 

Replacement Planting and Section 106 Monitoring. 

 

2. APPLICATION SITE 

 

2.1 The application site is located to the north of Woodside Avenue. The majority 

of the site comprises ‘white land’ on the adopted Local Plan, whilst an area to 

the north-east is located within the Green Network. The northern boundary 

immediately adjoins Rough Park and the proposed Rough Park Local Nature 

Reserve. The application site extends to approximately 0.39 hectares. 

 

2.2 The site was formerly occupied by Woodside Social Club. The building has 

been demolished and the parcel of land fronting Woodside Avenue largely 

comprises of hardstanding with the entire site bound with paladin fencing. The 

general topography of the area and the site itself slopes gently down towards 

the north-northwest. The site appears to have been terraced with a slope down 

from Woodside Avenue, a flatter area around the area of a former building in 

the centre of the site and then a slope down towards the north (towards Rough 

Park).  

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6b

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0573
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0573


 

 

 

2.3 Rough Park is located to the north and west whilst Rough Park BMX Park is 

located to the north-west. A water pumping station is located to the east, and 

Woodside Avenue bounds the site to the south. The wider area to the south is 

predominantly residential in character, whilst Madeley Academy is located to 

the east, behind Castlefields Way.  

 

3. APPLICATION DETAILS 

 

3.1 This is a Full Planning Application for the erection of a 33 no. Unit Care Home 

(Use Class C2) with associated access, car parking and landscaping. Access 

to the site is from the existing access point from Woodside Avenue. 

 

3.2 The Care Home is to be a specialist nursing care for adults with complex needs. 

The applicant is Exemplar Healthcare, an existing care operator providing 

specialist nursing care for adults living with a range of complex and high acuity 

needs. Exemplar support people with living with neuro-disabilities, brain 

injuries, spinal injuries, stroke, mental ill-health, physical disabilities, learning 

disabilities and/or autism and complex dementia.  Their homes support people 

of all ages, including younger adults with over half of service users aged 

between 46-65 and the average age of service users being 56 years of age. 

 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

 

4.1 The following planning history relates to the site: 

 

W86/0382 - Erection of single-storey building for Use as Social Club, 

Construction of Car Park and Vehicular Access - Granted 08 August 1992 

 

W92/0115 - Erection of an Extension to rear of the Premises, to provide a 

Kitchen, Office and Toilet Accommodation, with a Cellar Underneath - Granted 

03 April 1992 

 

W2004/1387 - Residential Development (Outline) - Granted 01 May 2006 

 

5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS 

 

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

5.2 Telford and Wrekin Local Plan (2011-2031): 

 

SP1: Telford 

SP4: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

HO7: Specialist Accommodation  

NE1: Biodiversity & Geodiversity  

Page 24



 

 

 

NE2: Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands  

NE4: Public Open Space 

NE6: Green Network 

C1: Promoting Alternatives to the Car 

C3: Impact of Development on Highways  

C5: Design of Parking 

BE1: Design Criteria  

ER1: Renewable Energy  

ER8: Waste Planting for Residential Developments  

ER11: Sewerage 

ER12: Flood Risk Management 

 

5.3 Madeley Neighbourhood Development Plan 

 

5.4 Homes for All SPD 

 

6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 

 

6.1 The application has been publicised through direct neighbour notifications. No 

public representations have been received.  

 

7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS 

 

7.1 Housing Commissioner: Support - the demand illustrated within the Council's 

Specialist and Supported Accommodation Strategy focusses primarily on 

supported living accommodation. However, it does show that where a 

residential model is being proposed, demand exists for services that provide 

high level specialist nursing care for service users with complex needs. Subject 

to this level of being service provided as per the details contained within the 

Design and Access Statement, the proposals can be supported by Strategic 

Housing. 

 

7.2 Highways: Support, subject to Condition(s) and s.106 in respect of £5,000 

towards Travel Plan Monitoring and £19, 640 for Bus Stop Improvement 

Contributions. 

 

7.3 Environmental Health: Support, subject to Amendments and Condition(s). 

 

7.4 Ecology: Support, subject to Condition(s) and Financial Contributions of 

£25,650 towards Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) and £14,400 towards Tree 

Replacement Planting.  

 

7.5 Arboriculture: Comments and amendments in respect to landscaping.   

7.6 Affordable Housing: Comment. 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

7.7 Drainage: Support, subject to Condition(s). 

 

7.8 Coal Authority: No Objection - the application site does not fall within the 

defined Development High Risk Area and is located instead within the defined 

Development Low Risk Area. This means that there is no requirement under 

the risk-based approach that has been agreed with the LPA for a Coal Mining 

Risk Assessment to be submitted or for The Coal Authority to be consulted. 

 

7.9 Shropshire Fire Service: Comment, referring to Fire Safety Guidance for 

Commercial and Domestic Planning Applications. 

 

7.10 West Mercia Police: Comment, referring to Secure be Design (SbD) 

accreditation. 

 

7.11 Severn Trent Water: No objection, subject to Condition(s). 

 

8. APPRAISAL 

 

8.1 Having regard to the Development Plan policy and other material 

considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 

the planning application raises the following main issues: 

 

 Principle of Development 

 Design and Visual Impact 

 Highways Impact 

 Residential Amenity (including noise and lighting) 

 Ecology 

 Trees 

 Drainage 

 Climate Resilience 

 Financial Contribution(s) 

 

8.2 Principle of Development 

 

8.2.1 The application site is located within the built up area of Telford, as defined by 

the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP) Policies Map (2018) and is located 

within the Madeley Development Plan Area. TWLP Policy SP1 states that 

Telford will be the principal focus for growth to meet the borough’s housing and 

employment development needs during the plan period.  

 

8.2.2 The application site is partly previously developed land, formerly occupied by 

the Woodside Social Club which has since been demolished leaving an area of 

hardstanding and the existing access. The site is also partially within the Green 

Network and adjoins the Rough Park Local Nature Reserve (LNR). The site 

Page 26



 

 

 

was Granted Outline Consent for residential development in 2006. However, 

the site remains vacant and undeveloped. 

 

8.2.3 In respect of para. 11 of the NPPF, if the proposals accord with an up-to-date 

Development Plan they should be approved without delay. Therefore, if the 

proposed development complies with the Development Plan and is sustainable 

development the principle should be supported. 

 

8.2.4 TWLP Policy HO7 supports proposals within Use Class C2 and other forms of 

residential accommodation including retirement homes to address specialist 

housing needs, provided that: 

 

I. The proposed development is designed to meet the specific needs of 

residents, including requirements for disabled people, where 

appropriate; 

II. The location of the development (including where such provision is 

part of a larger scheme) is in close proximity to community and support 

facilities, shops and services, and public transport connections; and 

III. The proposed development relates well to the local context in design, 

scale and form. 

 

8.2.5 The proposal is a purpose built Care Home, designed to meet individuals with 

specialist complex care needs. The Applicant, Exemplar Health Care, provides 

specialist nursing care for adults living with a range of complex and high acuity 

needs. Exemplar Healthcare provides support for people on their journey from 

being in hospital or living in a secure setting to community-based living, as well 

as offering longer-term support for people living with degenerative or life-limiting 

illnesses. Exemplar Healthcare provides specialist nursing care and 

rehabilitation to adults living with a range of complex and high acuity needs, 

caring for complex conditions but not limited to: 

 

 Behaviours of concern 

 Acquired Brain Injury 

 Stroke 

 Complex Dementia 

 Huntington’s Disease 

 Mental Health 

 Neuro-disability 

 Parkinson Disease 

 

8.2.6 The demand illustrated within the Council's Specialist and Supported 

Accommodation Strategy shows that where a residential model is being 

proposed, demand exists for services that provide high level specialist nursing 

care for service users with complex needs. This is supported by the Homes for 

All SPD which sets out the needs for specialist housing as well as guidance on 

design and location. The Homes for All SPD sets out the considerations when 

deciding whether a scheme for specialist housing for older people falls within 

Page 27



 

 

 

Use Class C2 or C3. The Applicant sets out the care facilities within the 

proposed development, and on balance, it is considered that the proposal fall 

within Use Class C2. As such, the proposals meet Policy HO7(i) of the Telford 

and Wrekin Local Plan. 

 

8.2.7 The application site is located on the edge of an existing residential area of 

Woodside. It is approximately 10-15 minute walk to the Local Centre which 

includes a Tesco Express, GP Surgery and Pharmacy. The site is also served 

by a regular bus service with bus stops in close proximity to the site. As such, 

the proposal is considered to meet Policy HO7(ii) of the Telford and Wrekin 

Local Plan. Please refer to the section on design regarding compliance with 

HO7(iii). 

 

8.2.8 Policy H2 of the Madeley Neighbourhood Development Plan considers that any 

wider investment into the provision of new housing or existing housing stock 

should seek to provide specialist and supported housing, such as wheelchair 

standard housing, sheltered housing, residential care homes, ‘extra care’ 

housing and continued care retirement communities as part of a mixed 

community, where possible, in accessible locations close to facilities. It is 

therefore considered that the proposed development complies with Policy H2. 

 

8.2.9 Policy NE6 of the Telford and Wrekin Local Plan states that the Council will 

protect, maintain, enhance and, where possible, extend the Green Network. 

The Council will only support new development within the Green Network where 

it identifies, protects and enhances the Green Network and its functions. Where 

adverse impacts are identified, development will need to demonstrate that the 

benefits of the development outweigh any adverse impacts on the Green 

Network and its function. 

 

8.2.10 The application site is partly located within land allocated as Green Network 

within the Local Plan. Policy NE6 (Green Network) of the plan is specific in that 

it seeks to protect, maintain, enhance and where possible extend the Green 

Network. The policy goes on to indicate that the Council will only support new 

development within Green Network where it identifies, protects and enhances 

the network and its functions. 

 

8.2.11 The policy also recognises however that there may be harm caused to the 

Green Network in which case, new development will need to demonstrate that 

the benefits of the development outweigh any adverse impacts upon it and its 

functions. 

 

8.2.12 There are six functions of the Green Network in total listed within the Local Plan. 

Some areas of Green Network may provide several functions whilst some may 

only fulfil one or even part of the functions listed. Equally, different weight may 

be given to the different functions a site provides depending on the actual 

benefits it provides. The six functions being: 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

i. To provide significant visual amenity value in the form of 

extensive views over green open areas, water bodies or 

woodland; 

ii. To provide separation between built up areas by significant open 

green areas, water bodies or woodland which help to retain and 

enhance the individual identity of local communities;  

iii. To provide an appropriate supply of open land to meet the diverse 

recreational needs of an expanding population, combining the 

more formal parkland and recreation areas with wider landscaped 

areas valuable for informal recreation;  

iv. To maintain, protect and enhance the borough’s ecological value 

in terms of natural habitats and species by providing ecological 

networks, corridors and stepping stones by which wildlife can 

move through, and thrive within, urban environments;  

v. To maintain, protect and enhance the unique geological and 

archaeological features within the borough as a legacy of its early 

place in the Industrial Revolution;  

vi. To provide open space linkages through which footpath, 

cycleways and ecological corridors can connect different parts of 

Telford or Newport forming accessible ‘green ways’ through 

urban areas 

 

8.2.13 The land is identified on the Council’s Proposals Map to provide woodland, 

open space and grassland features, as part of the Green Network’s wider 

designation in this location. 

 

8.2.14 The land is privately owned and as such, there is currently no right of access 

over the land itself. The site was formerly occupied by Woodside Social Club 

but the building has been demolished and the parcel of land fronting Woodside 

Avenue largely comprises of hardstanding with the site bound by paladin 

fencing. The site extends back where the topography falls away steeply towards 

Rough Park. The site previously saw some self-seeding vegetation develop 

however, since 2019 most of the site has been cleared and amenity grassland 

has developed. There are no protected trees on site. 

 

8.2.15 The LPA considers the site to be contained in nature given that it is largely 

surrounded by existing vegetation and the topography of the site slopes from 

south to north and as such it would have a limited impact on the Green Network. 

The site is surrounded by Council owned open space, comprising Rough Park 

and Rough Park Way running east/west to the north.  As such, the development 

of this site would not result in the loss of separation between built up areas and 

open spaces. The site would be visible from Woodside Avenue and Rough Park 

Way to the north (interspersed with vegetation). However, given the extent of 

the woodland within the vicinity, this would therefore cause some level of harm 

due to its visibility. However, this is considered low in the context of the existing 

water pumping station and wider residential development to the north. 

 

Page 29



 

 

 

8.2.16 As mentioned above, the wider Green Network in this location largely captures 

Council owned land to the north, east and west of the site. However, the 

application site is privately owned and therefore does not currently provide open 

space to members of the public. The proposal would provide some level of 

amenity to users of the development to meet the requirements of the 

development, however, this would continue to be privately accessed. 

 

8.2.17 Owing to the nature of the development, the amenity area is required to be 

secured and therefore the application cannot facilitate links through the site. 

Notwithstanding this, the existing footpath, directly to the west of the site, 

providing access from Woodside Avenue to Rough Park Way would remain and 

as such the LPA do not feel the need to provide additional routes. Furthermore, 

the site could provide active overlooking of the footpath and open space to the 

north which is considered a benefit. 

 

8.2.18 Comments from the Council’s Ecology Officer have been considered in this 

assessment. These comments conclude that overall the site has little ecological 

value, with common species and little suitable habitat for protected species. 

 

8.2.19 In assessing the harm, this must be weighed against the following benefits of 

the scheme: 

 

I. Provision of 3 no. bat boxes. 5 no. woodcrete nesting boxes suitable for 

bird species such as robin, blackbird and tit species, 4 no. nesting boxes 

suitable for house sparrow and 5 no. nesting boxes suitable for bird 

species such as swallows, house martins and swifts; 

II. Biodiversity Net Gain Monitoring Plan (for on-site management); 

III. Financial Contribution of £25,650 towards off-site biodiversity mitigation; 

IV. Financial Contribution of £14,400 towards off-site tree replacement 

planting; 

V. Planting of 5 no. hedgerow and 39 no. trees on site; 

VI. Creation of sensory gardens on site; 

VII. Provision of 3 no. Electric Vehicle Car Charging Points; and 

VIII. Financial Contribution of £19,640 towards bus stop improvements.  

 

8.2.20 The LPA attach some weight towards the harm caused by the proposal against 

criteria (i and iv) of the Green Network through the erection of a three storey 

building upon an areas of undeveloped Green Network and the loss of low-

value amenity grassland and tree planting. However, it is considered that the 

harm identified to the Green Network is outweighed by the benefits of the 

scheme (as listed at I–VII) as well as the delivery of a long-standing partly, 

previously developed site, in a sustainable location for a specialist nursing care, 

where there is an identified demand within the Council’s Specialist 

Accommodation Strategy for services that provide high level specialist nursing 

care for service users with complex needs. The LPA consider that the proposal 

is compliant with Policy NE6 on balance. 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

8.3 Design and Visual Impact of the Development 

 

8.3.1 Policy BE1 of the adopted Local Plan is concerned with securing high quality 

design in new development. It is criteria based and expects new development 

to be influenced by and respond positively to its context, demonstrating an 

integrated approach to design and layout, respecting landscape and creating a 

sense of place. New development should be energy efficient and promote 

sustainable building techniques. 

 

8.3.2 The layout of the development incorporates an ‘L’ shaped building at the rear 

of the site, whilst parking is located towards the site frontage and private 

amenity garden space located to the rear and sides of the building. 

 

8.3.3 This proposal contains 3no. self-contained units of 11 residents per floor. The 

reception and entrance is located at the side of the building with associated 

back of house facilities and a resident’s hub. Each bedroom contains an en-

suite (measuring c. 20- 21 sq. m in total), whilst a communal lounge, 

kitchen/dining and assisted WCs are provided on each floor.  Internally, level 

access will be provided at the main building entrance, means of escape doors, 

delivery doors and external doors to living spaces. Floor levels run 

uninterrupted by internal steps throughout the building and two lifts are 

proposed to be incorporated accessing all floors. 

 

8.3.4 In terms of the scale, the proposed development incorporates part three-storey, 

part two-storey elements with some smaller areas of single storey. The three-

storey element at the rear of the site houses the three 11-bed care units and is 

positioned into the northern portion of the site to maximize separation distances 

to any adjacent development and retain the existing openness along Woodside 

Avenue. The building wraps around and contains a two-storey element towards 

the front, which largely contains the reception area and associated back of 

house and ancillary services. The LPA consider that the setting back of the 

development responds well to the surrounding context and retains the open 

spaces either side of Woodside Avenue, whilst also allowing residents to 

maximise views to the north, over Rough Park.  

 

8.3.5 In terms of appearance, light brick and render with artificial roof slates are 

proposed, taking into consideration the material palette of the immediate 

surrounding area. In order to add visual interest and to reflect the 

wooded/parkland nature of the surrounding area, some elements are proposed 

to be clad in timber effect boarding.  

8.3.6 The site levels drop from the existing entrance by approximately 4 metres to 

the northern site boundary, with a fall of around a metre to roughly the centre 

of the site after which the levels fall more progressively. As a result, the site 

levels to the north elevation of the proposed building is 1.5 to 2 metres lower 

than ground floor level. As such, a raised external area is proposed adjacent to 

the living spaces to the rear of the building with level access, for the amenity of 

residents. There would be a lawned area that is to be set down from a terrace 

Page 31



 

 

 

utilising the existing levels, and other areas of the gardens would include parts 

intended for viewing rather than use. 

 

8.3.7 The proposal provides c. 650 sq. m of useable amenity space in the form of 

three raised decking areas to the north and west of the main building, 

comprising paths, herb gardens and ornamental planting. A sensory garden 

and seating area is located on the eastern boundary. Whilst this is below the 

quantity of private amenity space that the LPA typically request, it is 

acknowledged in this instance that it is suitable for the end users and that the 

perception of open space would be greater given the surrounding site context, 

with the sloping grassland and Rough Park open space to the north, east and 

west of the application site. 

 

8.3.8 Officers expressed concern with the erection of a 2.1 metre timber fence 

surrounding the entire site during determination as this would negatively impact 

the character of the area, suggesting a low level boundary or proposed 

hedgerows only around the car park and site frontage. The Applicant has 

agreed to this approach, however, a revised boundary plan has not been 

provided at this stage - should this plan not be provided, this element of the 

proposal would be conditioned. 

 

8.3.9 On balance, the scale of the proposals are considered acceptable in that they 

meet an identified need for the proposed function as a specialist Care Home 

whilst respecting and responding positively to its context and enhancing the 

quality of the local built and natural environment. The proposal is therefore 

considered to meet criteria iii of Policy HO7 and Policy BE1 of the Telford and 

Wrekin Local Plan.  

 

8.4 Highway Impacts 

 

8.4.1 Access into the site is proposed from the existing access point from Woodside 

Avenue, to the south.  

 

8.4.2 During the determination period, the Local Highway Authority (LHA) requested 

an increase in the parking provision. As outlined within ‘Proposed Site Layout 

Plan,’ the applicant has now maximised the amount of parking spaces being 

provided within the site with the provision of 36 no. parking spaces (previously 

26). However, there remains a shortfall of 10 no. spaces from what the TWLP 

Parking Standards outline for an establishment of this type. 

8.4.3 The application is accompanied by a Transport Statement. The Applicant has 

also demonstrated within the submitted Transport Statement that the number 

of spaces being proposed should be adequate to cater for the parking demands 

of staff, by comparing the proposed site with existing Care Homes of similar 

size, and in similar locations. 

 

8.4.4 The Council is currently rolling out a programme for bus shelter regeneration. 

As a result of the shortfall in car parking numbers and the proximity of the 

Page 32



 

 

 

development to the bus shelters along Woodside Avenue, the LPA have 

requested Financial Contribution(s) towards two upgraded shelters, directly 

adjacent to the site. The contributions would be spent on 2 no. 3 bay shelters 

with lighting to minimise anti-social behaviour. There is currently a small open 

side shelter on the east-bound side of Woodside Avenue, whilst the west-bound 

side only has a lamppost. Both bus stops would be upgraded to be of a similar 

appearance and it is envisaged that the existing open shelter will be relocated 

elsewhere in the borough, where required, until the full bus stop improvement 

roll out has been completed. 

 

8.4.5 The LHA note the site’s location is a factor to consider. The Care Home would 

sit within the residential area of Woodside, where a proportion of the staff 

associated to the care home could possibly reside. As well as the bus facilities 

already outlined, there is also very good pedestrian and cycle connectivity from 

the area to the site itself. Overall, the LHA accept the departure from the Parking 

Standards in this instance due to the contribution the planning department have 

requested towards the bus shelter regeneration programme. The contribution 

will improve the bus facilities in close proximity to the site which should in turn 

encourage more staff and visitors associated to the care home to travel by a 

more sustainable mode of transport. 

 

8.4.6 The proposal provides 3 no. disabled parking bay together with 3 no. electric 

vehicle charging points (with one of these spaces being disabled). A secure 

bike shelter is located on the site frontage providing a total of 10 no. cycle 

parking spaces. 

 

8.4.7 The LHA have also requested that a Travel Plan be produced by the Applicant 

which encourages staff associated to the Care Home to use more sustainable 

modes of transport to travel to and from the establishment. The Travel Plan 

would be monitored by the Authority for a set period of time to make sure 

progress towards the set-out targets are in turn achieved and a fee of £5,000 

has been requested to cover this monitoring.  

 

8.4.8 On balance the LHA consider that the small shortfall of parking spaces would 

not lead to an overspill of vehicles associated to the care home, out onto the 

adopted highway in the vicinity of the site. Accordingly, the LHA have no 

objection to the proposal subject to the Condition(s) and Financial 

Contribution(s). 

8.5 Residential Amenity 

 

8.5.1 A Noise Assessment has been submitted with the application. The Council’s 

Environmental Health Specialist has reviewed the assessment and is 

supportive, subject to amendments and Condition(s). 

 

8.5.2 The Assessment applied appropriate methodology and referred to current 

guidance quoting appropriate noise level limits for internal noise levels in 

habitable rooms including LAmax noise levels at night. It concludes that in order 

Page 33



 

 

 

to ensure reasonable noise levels are found inside habitable rooms in the 

proposed residential units within the care home facility that the glazing and 

ventilation specification would be necessary - the proposed mitigation is 

considered satisfactory. It is also noted that should additional ventilation units 

be required the noise attenuating properties may need to be revised - it is 

proposed that these aspects be Conditioned. 

 

8.5.3 The LPA are satisfied that noise emanating from the nearby BMX track would 

not have a significant adverse impact upon the development. The track is a 

public facility and meets with the standards of children’s play provision. This 

includes meeting and exceeding the guideline on proximity to residents of 30 

metres to prevent nuisance - the proposed building would be double the 

guideline for this buffer zone distance. There are the occasional small scale 

event at this site (training/mini competition), however the facility is used by 

bicycles (BMX’s) and not motorcycles with little or no noise. 

 

8.5.4 The Council’s Environmental Health Specialist noted that the initial assessment 

did not provide an assessment of the external amenity areas of the site. An 

updated Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application 

taking into consideration external amenity areas and any formal comments from 

the Council’s Environmental Health Specialist will be updated.    

 

8.5.5 A detailed lighting plan has not been provided at this stage, accordingly this 

element is proposed to be conditioned. 

 

8.6 Ecology 

 

8.6.1 The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) 

which has been reviewed by the Council’s Ecologist. The Council’s Ecologist 

initially objected to the proposal due to insufficient assessments of Biodiversity 

Net Gain. 

 

8.6.2 This site previously saw the establishment of self-setters develop however, 

since 2019 most of the site has been cleared and amenity grassland has 

developed. Overall the site has little ecological value, with common species and 

little suitable habitat for protected species. 

 

8.6.3 Following from the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, bat surveys were 

undertaken on-site to establish local bat activity and confirm an absence of 

roosts in trees surrounding the site. A dusk survey was completed on 01 August 

2022, Noctule and Common Pipistrelle activity was recorded in the area, no bat 

roosts were identified and overall bat activity was low. Controls on artificial 

lighting and the erection of bat boxes are included as Condition(s) to protect bat 

activity and provide roosting opportunities on-site post-development. 

 

8.6.4 During the determination, the LPA received updated Biodiversity Assessments 

to review. Biodiversity Assessments were carried out on this site using 

Page 34



 

 

 

UKHabitats classifications and a baseline biodiversity unit value established for 

the site using the Biodiversity Metric 3.0. A Biodiversity Metric was submitted 

with the application detailing proposed biodiversity enhancements on-site. After 

discussions with the Applicant’s Ecologist, amendments have been made and 

a final unit loss of 1.35 Biodiversity units reached. 

 

8.6.5 The developer has sought to compensate for the habitat loss off-site and the 

Council’s Ecology Team have worked to assess and secure the required 

numbers of habitat units to satisfy the losses including addressing the trading 

rules within the DEFRA biodiversity metric and to assign a financial cost to 

carrying out the required habitat works and maintenance over a 30-year period 

as required. 

 

8.6.6 The Section 106 Agreement for the site shall include a schedule on Biodiversity 

Net Gain to secure a financial contribution of £25,650. A Condition to secure a 

BNG Monitoring Plan is also proposed. 

 

8.7    Arboriculture and Landscaping 

 

8.7.1 Policy NE2 states ‘the Council expects existing trees, hedgerows and woodland 

with biodiversity value, visual amenity value and landscape value to be 

retained, protected and appropriately managed. Aged and Veteran Trees, 

Ancient Woodland and important hedgerows will be valued and protected.’ 

Under this Policy, and specifically referencing trees, the Council expects 

developments to: 

 

I. Assess potential impacts on trees. Proposals that involve felling or 

removal of trees (including aged and veteran trees), or are considered 

likely to cause demonstrable harm will normally be resisted unless 

acceptable mitigation or compensation measures can be secured. Loss 

or damage to irreplaceable habitats, including Ancient Woodlands and 

Veteran Trees, cannot be practically compensated and will not be 

acceptable; 

 

II. Demonstrate that any proposed removal or damage to trees is 

outweighed by the wider benefits of the scheme and that the trees 

cannot be retained without prejudicing the economic viability of the 

development. However where a development will cause significant harm 

to an irreplaceable habitat (including ancient woodland and veteran 

trees) which, by its nature, cannot be mitigated or compensated for 

permission will be resisted; 

 

III. Provide replacement and enhancement planting which maintains local 

amenity, character of the local area and biodiversity value and should 

primarily include native species of local provenance; 

 

Page 35



 

 

 

IV. Incorporate trees as an integral part of a scheme and ensure protection 

measures before and during construction and appropriate management, 

maintenance and protection thereafter; 

 

V. Provide replacement planting both in terms of habitat and amenity value 

where tree woodland loss is unavoidable. 

 

8.7.2 An Arboricultural Impact Assessment accompanies the planning application.  

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has reviewed the application and comments 

that the proposal is contradictory to Planning Policy NE2 as the proposal would 

result in the loss of 20 no. Trees.  

 

8.7.3 The Applicant is prepared to make a financial contribution towards the off-site 

replacement of these Trees, secured by means of a s.106 Agreement, 

calculated at £14,400. 

 

8.7.4 The application is accompanied by a Landscaping Plan, comprising tree, hedge 

and shrub planting. The planting plan focuses on the site boundaries, largely 

on the northern and western boundaries, whilst some planting is located on the 

site frontage. The planting plan includes 39 no. trees  

(16-18 cm girth) and 5 no. hedges. 

 

8.7.5 The Council’s Healthy Spaces Officer initially objected to the proposal 

requesting enhancements designed to meet the needs of the proposed 

residents through the provision of sensory and seasonal planting. A revised 

planting plan was received during the determination period which included: 

 

 A herb garden (within raised planters); 

 A sensory garden including a path away into the lawn area to create 

an alternative circulation route , passing through plants with colour / 

scent / movement / attractive to butterflies / seasonal change with a 

couple of benches either side of the path set in the middle of the 

planting; 

 Raised Planters/Kitchen Garden - For growing 

herbs/salad/vegetables etc. (wheel chair friendly); 

 Ornamental Planting - A shrub bed is provided adjacent to the seating 

area with colour/movement and seasonal change; 

 Movement Plants - Layered ornamental grasses for 

movement/colour and seasonal change. 

 

8.7.6 The Tree Officer has also requested amendments to the planting plans 

submitted. At this stage, a revised landscaping plan addressing all of the 

concerns raise has not been provided and as such the LPA propose to 

Condition this detail in order to satisfy the Council’s planting requirements, 

unless it is provided. Additionally, the LPA proposes to Condition details of the 

Landscape Management Plan to ensure these areas are managed 

appropriately in the future - this plan should include who is to manage these 

Page 36



 

 

 

areas, how on-going maintenance is to be financed, a schedule of maintenance 

operations, a monitoring and review schedule. 

 

8.7.7 The Applicant has considered the Healthy Space Officer’s comments regarding 

a roof garden however contends that this is not a viable option for Exemplar 

with the type of care they provide and the service users that would be in the 

home. 

 

8.8 Drainage 

 

8.8.1 The formal flood zone mapping shows the site to be located within Flood Zone 

1 (low risk of flooding). 

 

8.8.2 The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) supports the application, subject to 

Condition(s) requiring the submission of the detailed drainage strategy prior to 

commencement. 

 

8.8.3 Severn Trent Water have reviewed the application and support the application, 

subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring drainage plans for the disposal 

of foul and surface water flows. They also advise that there is a public 600mm 

surface water sewer located within this site. Public sewers have statutory 

protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without 

consent. The clean water team at Severn Trent have also advised that they 

have apparatus in the area of the planned development. The applicant has 

shown the public surface water sewer on their Proposed Site Plan, as mapped 

and have already instigated discussions with Severn Trent in respect to the 

diversion of this pipe, in line with their standing advice. 

 

8.9 Climate Resilience 

 

8.9.1 Policy ER1 encourages developments to adapt to climate change and help 

reduce carbon emissions. 

 

8.9.1 The development would provide a total of 3 Electric Vehicle Charging Points 

on-site (including 1 no. disabled EV Charging space). The LPA propose to 

condition the delivery of this provision. 

 

8.9.2 The LPA requested that consideration be given to solar panels on the roof. 

However, Exemplar does not currently include Photovoltaic panels within their 

requirements and consider this to be unviable due to factors such as costs, 

payback periods and maintenance. 

 

8.10 Contamination 

 

8.10.1 The application is supported by a Phase 1 Ground Investigations Report. The 

Report has identified potential contamination sources on the site including 

Made Ground linked to the historical development on site, former use of parts 

Page 37



 

 

 

of the site as a car park, elevated Arsenic levels in urban soils and the adjacent 

water pumping station. The Report recommends that a further Assessment of 

the hardstanding is required to understand whether it contains coal tar as well 

as undertaking ground gas monitoring. 

 

8.10.2 Given the slope on the site, the proposed building may need to be terraced or 

earthworks undertaking to level the site. Depending on the final loadings and 

development plans a slope stability assessment may be required. Additionally, 

intrusive investigations are recommended to address the issues raised within 

the Report. The LPA have Conditioned these elements. 

 

8.11 Financial Contribution(s) 

 

8.11.1 Any planning consent would be conditional on the finalisation of a s.106 

Agreement to secure the following: 

 

I. Public Transport Contribution of £19,640 towards bus stop 

improvements on the northern and southern side of Woodside 

Avenue to provide each stop with a new 3 bay arun shelter and 

lighting; 

II. Highways Contribution towards Travel Plan Monitoring: £5,000; 

III. Biodiversity Net Gain Contribution: £25,650; 

IV. Tree Replacement Standard of £14,400; 

V. Section 106 Monitoring Fee (1% of total value of contributions). 

 

8.11.2 In determining the required Planning Obligations on this specific application the 

following three tests as set out in the CIL Regulations (2010), in particular 

Regulation 122, have been applied to ensure that the application is treated on 

its own merits: 

 

a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

b) Directly related to the development; 

c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

9. CONCLUSION 

 

9.1 The proposed development is located within the built up area of Telford and 

comprises a 33 no. Unit Care Home with associated landscaping and parking. 

It is considered the development falls within Use Class C2 and would meet the 

demand illustrated within the Specialist Accommodation Strategy (530-bed 

spaces by 2030/31) where there is an identified need for this level of care 

accommodation. As such, the proposal is considered compliant with Policy SP1 

and Policy HO7 of the Telford and Wrekin Local Plan and Policy H2 of the 

Madeley Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

 

9.2 The rear of the site is located within the Green Network - when assessing the 

proposal against Policy NE6, the LPA has attached limited weight towards the 

Page 38



 

 

 

low level of harm to criteria (I and iv) through the erection of a three-storey 

building upon an areas of undeveloped Green Network. However, it is 

considered that the harm identified to the Green Network is outweighed by the 

benefits of the scheme (as listed at I–VII of para. 8.2.19), as well as the 

development of a long-standing partly, previously developed site, in a 

sustainable location for specialist nursing care, where there is an identified 

demand within the Council’s Specialist Accommodation Strategy for services 

that provide high level specialist nursing care for service users with complex 

needs within the borough. As such, the application is considered compliant with 

Policy NE6. 

 

9.3 The proposal would result in a level of tree loss and biodiversity loss by virtue 

of the siting of the building and the limited availability of land for landscaping.  

However, the proposals provide financial contributions towards off-site 

mitigation to the value of £25,650 towards BNG and it is proposed that the on-

site management of biodiversity would be conditioned. As such, the proposals 

are considered compliant with Policy NE1 in this instance. 

 

9.4 The proposal provides a financial contribution towards the off-site replacement 

of trees to the value of £14,400. Whilst the proposal does contain an area of 

landscaping to the rear of the building and the planting of 39. no Trees and 

hedges around the site, the loss of the existing trees cannot be fully 

compensated for or replaced and as such Policy NE2 (i) and (v) cannot be 

wholly satisfied. In terms of para. 11 of the NPPF, the application does not 

accord with the Development Plan although para. 12 makes provisions for Local 

Planning Authorities to make decisions that depart from an up-to-date 

Development Plan, but only if material considerations in a particular case 

indicate that the plan should not be followed. 

 

9.5 The development would result in a shortfall of 10 no. parking spaces when 

assessed against the Local Plan’s parking standards. However, the LHA are 

satisfied that this would not lead to an overspill of vehicles associated to the 

care home out onto the adopted highway in the vicinity of the site. Moreover, 

the LPA have requested financial contributions of £19,640 towards bus stop 

improvements towards the no. bus stops immediately adjacent to the site and 

the site’s sustainable location has been considered in this assessment. The 

LHA have no objection to the proposal subject to Condition(s) and Financial 

Contribution(s). 

 

9.6 The scale of the proposals are considered acceptable in that they meet an 

identified need for the proposed function as a specialist Care Home whilst 

respecting and responding positively to its context and enhancing the quality of 

the local built and natural environment. The proposal is therefore considered to 

be compliant with Policy HO7 and Policy BE1 of the Telford and Wrekin Local 

Page 39



 

 

 

Plan. 

 

9.7 Financial Contribution(s) totalling £64,690 are requested in relation to the Bus 

Stop Improvements in the vicinity of the site, Biodiversity Enhancement off-site, 

Tree Replacement Planting off-site, Travel Plan Monitoring and s.106 

Monitoring Fees (as detailed at paragraph 10.1A). 

 

10. DETAILED RECOMMENDATION  

 

10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning 

Committee is that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 

Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION 

subject to the following: 

 

a) The Applicant/Landowners entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the 

Local Planning Authority (items (ii to iv) subject to indexation from the date 

of committee), relating to: 

 

I. Financial Contribution of £19,640 towards off-site bus stop 

improvements on the northern and southern side of Woodside 

Avenue to provide each stop with a new 3 bay shelter and 

lighting; 

II. Financial Contribution of £5,000 towards Travel Plan 

Monitoring; 

III. Financial Contribution of £25,650 towards off-site Biodiversity 

Net Gain; 

IV. Financial Contribution of £14,400 towards off-site Tree 

Replacement Planting; 

V. Section 106 Monitoring Fee (1% of total value of 

contributions). 

 

b) Submission of a replacement landscaping and planting scheme and 

boundary treatment scheme; in line with comments from the LPA. 

 

c) The following Condition(s) and Informative(s) (with authority to finalise 

Condition(s) to be delegated to Development Management Service Delivery 

Manager): 

 

Condition(s): 

 

Time Limit 
Full Site Environmental Management Plan (including on-site construction) 
Foul and Surface Water 
Surface Water Treatment Scheme 
Sewer Build over Agreement 

Page 40



 

 

 

Landscaping (including boundary treatment) 
Landscape Management Plan 
Ground Conditions (Phase II) 
Ground Gas Monitoring 
Slope Stability 
Ecology Report Compliance 
Nesting/Roosting Boxes 
Lighting Plan 
Biodiversity Net Gain Management Plan 
Travel Plan 
Parking, Loading, Unloading and Turning 
Visibility Splays 
Access Drive and Material 
Cycle Parking Details 
Acoustic Barrier Detail 
Materials Details  
Ventilation Details 
Glazing Details 
EV Charging (Compliance) 
Tree Protection Plan 
Arboricultural Clerk of Works 
Tree Planting  
Approved Plans 

 
 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Woodside Avenue

C
astlefields W

ay

305200

3
6
8

9
5

0
3

6
8

9
5

0

3
6
8

8
5

0

3
6
8

9
0

0
3

6
8

9
0

0

305200

305150

305100

Water Pumping Station

C
R

W
ard B

dy

(c) Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2022 OS 100060020

305150

3
6
8

8
5

0

3
6
8

8
0

0
3

6
8

8
0

0

305100

305050305050

WillowfieldWillowfield

Shelter
Shelter

11

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

A2

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P2

1 : 1250

6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 002

March 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Location Plan

Exemplar HC

1 : 1250
Location Plan

North

0

SCALE 
1:

504030201010

m1250

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 11.04.22 Planning submission AR MF

P2 06.06.22 Location plan amended AR MF

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Woodside Avenue

Woodside Avenue

Woodside Avenue

ST02

ST03

ST04

ST05

30mph, asphalt ro
ad

30mph, Asphalt ro
ad

30mph, Asphalt ro
ad

128.16

128.22

128.18
128.20

127.26

127.27

127.30

127.31

1
2
7
.3

0

1
2
7
.30

127.30

127.29

127.31

127.31

127.29

127.28

127.30

1
2
7
.2

9
1
2
7
.2

9

1
2
7
.2

8

127.31

1
2
7
.18

127.28

126.06

126.15

125.78

125.87

125.88

125.92

125.83

125.82

125.71

125.76

1
2
6
.0

2

127.10

127.14

127.20

127.04

126.08

125.67

125.47

125.04

125.26

126.33

126.05

125.81

125.39

125.67

126.27

126.13

124.78

124.64

1
2
6
.1

0

ER

SV

SV

LP

LP

LP

LP

RS

SI

BO

BO

Asphalt

Concrete

127.45

127.82

127.97

127.99

Tactile

Box

1
28

.0
1

128.12

128.12

128.15

128.14

128.22

128.39

1
2
8
.4

5

1
2
8
.3

7

128.35

128.36

128.35

128.38

1
2
8
.3

3

1
2
8
.0

9

1
2
7
.8

4

1
2
7
.6

2

1
2
8
.4

7

128.51

128.60

128.68

128.80

I/R
  fe

nce 1h

Cobbled

Maple 9h

Maple 12h

UK 5h

UK 12h

Maple 7h

UK 3h

UK 2.5h

UK 3h

UK 5h

UK 12h

UK 12h

UK 7h

UK 7h

UK 9h

UK 9h

Pine 18h

Pine 12h Pine 16h
Pine 16h

UK 8h

UK 15h

UK 16h
UK 18h

12
8.

65

128.61

128.52

128.40

128.29

128.22

128.16

128.16

128.12

128.06

128.03

127.87

127.49

128.31

Broken fence

C/L fe
nce 2h

C/L fence 2h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e 
2h

V
e
ge

ta
tion

 1
.5

 -3
.5

h

Vegetation and tree canopies 1- 5h

1
2
8
.3

9

128.32

1
2
8
.3

2

128.29

128.23

1
2
8
.0

2

1
2
7
.5

8

1
2
7
.2

6

B
rick w

a
ll 0

.8
h

Pipe

Concrete

Bush

Bushes

H
e
ra

s fe
n
ce

 2
h

H
e
ra

s fe
n
ce

 2
hC/L fe

nce 2h

B
rick w

a
ll

C/L fence 2h

C/L fence 2h

C/L fence 2h

C
/L

 fe
nce

 2
h

C
/L

 fe
nce

 2
h

C
/L

 fe
nce

 2
h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e
 2

h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e 
2h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e 
2h

C/L fe
nce 2h

H
e
ra

s fe
n
ce

 2
h

H
e
ra

s fe
n
c
e
 2

h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e
 2

h

C
/L

 fe
nc

e
 2

h

Palisade fence 1.5h

P
a
lisa

d
e
 fe

n
ce

 1
.5

h

P
a
lisa

d
e
 fe

n
ce

 1
.5

h

Palisade fence 1.5h Palisade fence 1.8h

C/L fe
nce 2h

Heras fence 2h

V
e
ge

ta
tion

 1
.5

 -3
.5

h

V
e
ge

ta
tion

 1
- 4

h

Vegetation 2.5 - 3h

Vegetation 2.5 - 3h

V
eg

et
at

io
n 

2.
5 

- 
3h

Concrete

concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

Asphalt

B
re

ak
 in

 fe
nc

e

Plastic speed bump

Tactile

V
eg

et
at

io
n 

2.
5 

- 
3h

Steps up

Steps up

Concrete

Unmade ground

Unmade ground

Unmade ground

Grass

Log piles

Log piles

Log piles

Overgrown by vegetation unable to survey

Log piles

Log piles

Log piles

Overgrown by vegetation unable to survey

Log piles

Log piles

Overgrown by vegetation unable to survey

Log piles

Log piles

Log piles

Overgrown by vegetation

Log piles

Log piles

Log piles

Overgrown by vegetation unable to survey

Asphalt

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brick building

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Woodland

Unmade ground

Vegetation and tree canopies 1.5 -10h

Vegetation and tree canopies 1.5 -10h

V
e
g
e
ta

tion
 a

n
d
 tre

e
 ca

n
o
pie

s 1
.5

 -10
h

V
e
g
 a

n
d
 tre

e
 ca

n
o
p
ie

s 1
.5 -1

0
h

Vegetation and tre
e canopies 1.5 -10h

Asphalt

I/R
  fe

nce 1h

Vegetation and tree canopies 1- 5h

0
.6

h

 unable to survey

Grass

V
e
g
e
ta

tion
 a

n
d
 tre

e
 ca

n
o
p
ie

s 1
.5

 -1
0
h

B
re

ak
 in

 fe
nc

e

B
re

ak
 in

 fe
nc

e

Grass

Grass

Grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

Overgrown grass

IC
CL 127.97

IC
CL 127.98

IC
CL 127.95

IC
CL 128.02

IC
CL 128.18

IC
CL 128.31

IC
CL 128.50

MH
CL 127.53

127.33

127.70

127.86

127.93

12
7
.9

3

127.99

128.02

128.02

128.03

128.10

128.29

1
2
8
.3

9

1
2
8
.2

9

128.25

128.24

128.23

128.23

1
2
8
.2

4

1
2
7
.9

7

1
2
7
.7

0

1
2
7
.4

0

1
2
7
.1

5

1
2
7
.4

8

1
2
7
.8

7

128.09

128.18

1
2
8
.2

1

128.22

1
2
8
.2

9

1
2
8
.3

8

128.38

128.47

128.56

128.66

12
8.

52

128.49

128.41

128.28

128.18

128.09

128.04

128.05

127.99

127.96

127.92

127.76

127.38

128.16

128.21

E
L
 1

3
0
.0

0

E
L
 1

2
9
.9

8

E
L
 1

2
9
.8

8

R
L
 1

3
0
.6

8

R
L
 1

3
0
.6

4

124.10

124.22

124.15

124.16

12
4.

20

1
2
4
.5

3

12
2.

92

12
3.

02

12
2.

94

127.06

128.02

128.26

128.26

127.93

128.00

128.04

128.07

128.07

128.12

128.15

128.29

128.33

128.36

128.45

128.52

128.61

128.66

126.98

127.97

128.06

128.15

128.35

128.35

127.80

127.85

127.39

128.06

128.06

128.23

128.21

128.35

128.41

128.23

128.17

128.36

128.31

128.21

128.10

128.10

127.98

127.98

127.45

127.55

127.58

127.54

127.65

127.81

127.90

128.17127.55

127.35

127.40

127.32

127.32

127.35

127.20

127.32

127.34

127.38

127.31

127.33

127.34

127.34

127.49

127.58

127.28

127.46

127.32

127.33

127.35

127.30

127.35

127.31

127.42

127.37

127.48

127.29

127.38

127.27

127.30

127.36

127.22

127.12

126.85

126.37

126.09

125.84

125.92

126.22

126.57

126.83

127.04

126.97

127.05

127.16

127.22

126.90

126.95

127.13

126.77

127.17

127.09

127.19

126.90

126.71

126.45

125.86

126.37

126.06

125.81

125.93

126.19

126.32

126.35

126.41

126.54

125.44

125.38 125.51

125.35

125.44

124.86

125.49

125.84

125.32

124.85

124.68

124.96

124.70

124.75

124.98

125.20

125.45

125.93

125.68

125.55

125.32
125.26

125.00
125.11

125.02124.85

124.74

124.67

124.43

124.53

124.76

124.95

125.00

125.00

124.87

125.34

125.65

126.05

125.74

124.40

124.31
124.31

124.09

124.50

124.15
123.87

123.48

123.25

127.63

127.98

127.98

127.94

127.57

1
2
7
.6

8

128.11

128.13

128.14

128.25

128.32

128.38

128.15

128.20

128.25

128.35

128.26

128.38

128.37

128.54

128.61

128.62

128.70

128.62

128.78

128.84

126.97

1
2
7
.3

3

1
2
7
.4

9

1
2
7
.8

9

1
2
8
.0

4

1
2
8
.2

5

1
2
8
.3

8

128.34

128.34

128.42

128.99

128.85

128.79

128.71

127.76

126.52

125.14

123.18

120.84

120.84

123.03

124.85

126.51

128.01

128.60

128.53

128.43

128.43

128.48

1
2
7
.8

2

1
2
6
.43

1
2
5
.93

1
2
4
.9

8

12
5.

09

12
4.

99

12
4.

64

12
4.

53

127.28

127.63

127.84

127.05

126.63

126.50

127.88

128.00

127.93

127.86

128.13

128.37

127.90

1
2
7
.7

5

127.23

127.31

127.23

127.22

127.20

127.18

126.88

126.79

124.68

124.64

125.29

125.23

125.29

125.46

125.51

125.62

127.30

126.11

125.86

125.52

124.42123.03

121.65

121.50

126.01

125.84

126.62

127.12

127.10

1
2
7
.0

0

126.84

126.74

126.31

125.92

127.55

127.51

127.05

127.14

127.16

1
2
7
.1

7

1
2
6
.77

1
2
6
.6

4

1
2
5
.4

4

1
2
4
.7

9

1
2
3
.5

6

123.46

124.30

124.50

124.56

127.17

127.02

128.26

128.32

1
2
6
.5

9

1
2
6
.6

7

1
2
6
.6

8

1
27

.00

127.03

1
2
6
.6

4

GG
127.89

GG
128.14

GG
128.64

GG
128.52

GG
128.15

GG
127.94

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P2

1 : 200

6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 003

March 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Existing Site Plan

Exemplar HC

1 : 200
Existing Site Plan

0

SCALE 
1:

1086422

m200

North

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 11.04.22 Planning submission AR MF

P2 15.06.22 Red line amended AR MF

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ST02

ST04

ST05

SV

SV

LP

LP

LP

RS

SI

BO

BO

E
L
 1

3
0
.0

0

E
L
 1

2
9
.9

8

E
L
 1

2
9
.8

8

R
L
 1

3
0
.6

8

R
L
 1

3
0
.6

4

GG
128.14

GG
128.64

GG
128.52

GG
128.15

DN

UP

Proposed terrace area to lounge and dining spaces
Ground to be moved to provide a level access terrace for 
seating - subject to levels
Planting or raised planters to border 
Ground to slope away to the North

3no. electric charging points - 2no. standard 
spaces and 1 no. disbaled space

Secure perimeter boundary - 2.1m high timber 
boarded fence - to provide secure garden for 
service users 

Level access terrace area for Hub

Garden shed - 7 x 4 BillyOh Cargo Pent 
Metal Shed - To suppliers details - Concrete 
base to extend to provide level access -
location TBC

Bin

Store

127.13

Raised planters around level terrace - with steps down to 
lawned area 

Lawned area to be no more than 1:20 from hub terrace to 
provide level access

Smoking 

Shelter

125.20

126.07

124.74

124.98

124.99

125.19

Landscape design shown is indicative - landscape proposals 
to be developed and designed by appointed landscape 
designer

Pedestrian access to connect to existing

124.67

Access round building  to be provided

127.13

Park view terrace

PR
O
P
O
S
ED

 5M
 E

A
S
EM

EN
T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 5
M

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

PROPOSED 5M EASEMENT

PR
O
P
O
S
ED

 5M
 E

A
S
EM

EN
T

26

Bike 

Shelter 

Access round building to be provided- final arrangements 
TBC - allow for hard surface

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9

36
35

33

32
31

30

13

28

27

26

25

24

23

11

12

34

10

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

29

128.39

128.43

Smoking 

Shelter

EV 

Charging

EV 

Charging

EV 

Charging

Disabled 

Parking

Disabled 

Parking

Disabled 

Parking

Low level planting/existing native hedges to front 
boundary 

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P10

1 : 200

6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 004

March 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed Site Plan

Exemplar HC

1 : 200
Proposed Site Plan

North

0

SCALE 
1:

1086422

m200

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 17.03.22 Bin store and cycle store relocated AR MF

P2 11.04.22 Site plan updated for planning submision AR MF

P3 14.04.22 Indicative landscape updated AR MF

P4 03.05.22 Indicative landscape updated to include path for access AR MF

P5 12.05.22 Indicative landscape amended AR MF

P6 13.05.22 Proposed easement added AR MF

P7 15.06.22 Updated with updated design AR MF

P8 17.06.21 Parking updated AR MF

P9 26.08.22 Layout updated following highways comments to include
more parking provision

AR MF

P10 31.10.22 Smoking shelter moved, front boundary fence removed
for planting, cycle provision increased

AR MF

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UP

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

1

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

2

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

3

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

4

9.92 m²
Nurse Room

15.74 m²
Bedroom 2

5.06 m²
Ensuite

15.70 m²
Bedroom 3

4.91 m²
Assisted WC

33.62 m²
Lounge

35.74 m²
Kitchen / Dining

15.74 m²
Bedroom 4

5.08 m²
Ensuite

5.08 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 5 19.12 m²

Assisted
Bathroom

15.13 m²
Quiet Lounge

15.51 m²
Stair

15.79 m²
Bedroom 6

4.99 m²
Ensuite

5.04 m²
Ensuite

15.79 m²
Bedroom 7

16.77 m²
Bedroom 816.76 m²

Bedroom 9
15.74 m²

Bedroom 10

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.01 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 1117.09 m²

Stair

36.84 m²
Kitchen

4.76 m²

Kitchen Staff
Change

2.82 m²
WC

40.24 m²
Laundry

29.50 m²
Reception

40.22 m²
Hub

3.72 m²
Dis WC

16.98 m²
Stair

9.06 m²
Kitchen Store

14.51 m²
Admin

13.11 m²
CHD

24.34 m²
Plant

13.23 m²

CNM /
Maintenance

Office

2.64 m²
Cleaner

2.64 m²
Comms

2.80 m²
Drugs Store

6.01 m²
Storm Lobby

4.93 m²
Sluice

10.06 m²
Consult

W
a
s
h

e
r

W
a
s
h

e
r

W
a
s
h

e
r

T
ro

lle
y

Ironer

T
ro

lle
y

T
ro

lle
y

FFL
127.13

4.92 m²
Hoist

T
u

m
b
le

 
D

ry
e
r

T
u

m
b
le

 
D

ry
e
r

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

6.67 m²
Corridor

5.04 m²
Linen

GIA:
GF: 893M2
FF: 796M2
SF: 554M2
TOTAL: 2243m2

5.20 m²
Ensuite

1.82 m²
Store

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

15.74 m²
Bedroom 1

5.06 m²
Ensuite

62.21 m²
Corridor

25.11 m²
Corridor

19.53 m²
Lift Lobby

17.17 m²
Corridor

10.96 m²
Corridor

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P2

1 : 100

6653- SSA- 01- 00- DR-A-100

Feb 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed Ground Floor

Exemplar HC

1 : 100
+00 - Ground Floor

North

0

SCALE 
1:

543211

m100

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

02.02.22 First Issue AR MF

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 08.04.22 Updated planning drawings to design team and for
planning submission

AR MF

P2 21.06.22 Design updated AR MF

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UP

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

1

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

2

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

3

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

4

37.57 m²
Therapy Room

34.31 m²
Training Room

13.46 m²
Visitor Suite

2.61 m²
Ensuite

16.98 m²
Stair

11.51 m²
Sensory Room

12.23 m²
Hair salon

26.51 m²
Staff Room

7.32 m²
F Staff Change

7.32 m²
M Staff Change

10.32 m²
Nurses Room

5.20 m²
Ensuite

17.09 m²
Stair

15.74 m²
Bedroom 22

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.02 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 21

16.76 m²
Bedroom 20

16.77 m²
Bedroom 19

5.01 m²
Ensuite

15.79 m²
Bedroom 18

4.99 m²
Ensuite

5.04 m²
Ensuite

15.79 m²
Bedroom 17

15.13 m²
Quiet Lounge 15.51 m²

Stair

19.12 m²

Assisted
Bathroom15.74 m²

Bedroom 16
5.08 m²

Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 15

5.08 m²
Ensuite

35.72 m²
Kitchen/Dining

33.62 m²
Lounge

15.70 m²
Bedroom 14

5.06 m²
Ensuite

5.06 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 13

4.93 m²
Sluice

FFL
130.08

12.31 m²
Store

4.89 m²
Linen

62.18 m²
Corridor

5.04 m²
Hoist

5.02 m²
Ensuite

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)(15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

17.17 m²
Corridor

5.96 m²
Corridor

25.11 m²
Corridor

4.91 m²
Assisted WC

15.74 m²
Bedroom 12

5.77 m²
Drugs Room

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P2

1 : 100

6653- SSA- 01- 01- DR-A-101

Feb 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed First Floor

Exemplar HC

1 : 100
+01 - First Floor

North

0

SCALE 
1:

543211

m100

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

02.02.22 First Issue AR MF

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 08.04.22 Updated planning drawings to design team and for
planning submission

AR MF

P2 21.06.22 Design updated AR MF

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

1

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

2

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

3

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

4

33.62 m²
Lounge

35.85 m²
Dining Room

4.93 m²
Sluice

15.74 m²
Bedroom 26

5.08 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 27

19.12 m²

Assisted
Bathroom

15.51 m²
Stair

15.13 m²
Quiet Lounge

15.79 m²
Bedroom 28

5.04 m²
Ensuite

4.99 m²
Ensuite

15.78 m²
Bedroom 29

16.77 m²
Bedroom 30

16.76 m²
Bedroom 31

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.01 m²
Ensuite

4.81 m²
Assisted WC

15.74 m²
Bedroom 25

5.06 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 23

5.20 m²
Ensuite

10.32 m²
Nurses

17.09 m²
Stair

15.74 m²
Bedroom 33

5.02 m²
Ensuite

5.02 m²
Ensuite

15.74 m²
Bedroom 32

5.06 m²
Ensuite

FFL
133.005

5.08 m²
Ensuite

5.77 m²
Drugs Room

(15.7m2 excluding 
door swing)

15.74 m²
Bedroom 24

5.04 m²
Linen

4.89 m²
Hoist

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

(16m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing) (15m2 excluding 

door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

(15m2 excluding 
door swing)

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P2

1 : 100

6653- SSA- 01- 02- DR-A-102

Feb 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed Second Floor

Exemplar HC

1 : 100

+02 - Second Floor

North

0

SCALE 
1:

543211

m100

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

02.02.22 First Issue AR MF

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 08.04.22 Updated planning drawings to design team and for
planning submission

AR MF

P2 21.06.22 Design updated AR MF

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



0.000 m

+00 - Ground Floor

2.950 m

+01 - First Floor

-0.150 m

-01 - External Level

5.875 m

+02 - Second Floor

5.425 m

Two Storey Eaves

Timber effect cladding to projections

Anthracite grey UPVC windows

Buff brick to as main brick

Art stone band

Off-white render

Darker buff brick up to 150mm 
above GF FFL.
Header course in darker brick

Grey roof tiles

Black UPVC rain water goods

0.000 m

+00 - Ground Floor

2.950 m

+01 - First Floor

-0.150 m

-01 - External Level

8.350 m

+03 - Eaves Level

5.875 m

+02 - Second Floor

5.425 m

Two Storey Eaves

Timber cladding to projections

Anthracite grey UPVC windows

Buff brick to as main brick

Art stone band

Off-white render

Darker buff brick up to 150mm 
above GF FFL.
Header course in darker brick

Grey roof tiles

Black UPVC rain water goods

8.430 m

SF Ceiling

Timber effect cladding to projections

Anthracite grey UPVC windows

Buff brick to as main brick

Art stone band

Off-white render

Darker buff brick up to 150mm 
above GF FFL.
Header course in darker brick

Grey roof tiles

Black UPVC rain water goods

Timber effect cladding to 
projections

Anthracite grey UPVC windows

Buff brick to as main brick

Art stone band

Off-white render

Darker buff brick up to 150mm 
above GF FFL.
Header course in darker brick

Grey roof tiles

Black UPVC rain water goods

Timber effect cladding to projections

Anthracite grey UPVC windows

Buff brick to as main brick

Art stone band

Off-white render

Darker buff brick up to 150mm 
above GF FFL.
Header course in darker brick

Grey roof tiles

Black UPVC rain water goods

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ

WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P3

1 : 100

6653- SSA- 01- XX-DR-A-200

Feb 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed Elevations

Exemplar HC

1 : 100

South

1 : 100

West

1 : 100

North

1 : 100

East
0

SCALE 
1:

543211

m100

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

02.02.22 First Issue AR MF

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 08.04.22 Updated planning drawings to design team and for
planning submission

AR MF

P2 13.05.22 Lift shaft added AR MF

P3 21.06.22 Design updated AR MF

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

1

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

2

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

3

6653-
SSA-
01-

XX-DR-A-200

4

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P3

1 : 100

6653- SSA- 01- 04- DR-A-103

Feb 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Proposed Roof Plan

Exemplar HC

1 : 100
Roof Plan

North

0

SCALE 
1:

543211

m100

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

P0 14.03.22 First Planning Issue AR MF

P1 08.04.22 Updated planning drawings to design team and for
planning submission

AR MF

P2 13.05.22 Lift shaft added AR MF

P3 21.06.22 Design updated AR MF

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Care Home

Pumping Station

Rough Park EntranceRough Park 

Date: Scale: Sheet size:

Drg No: Revision:

A1

Drawing Title:

Client:

Status:

Project name:

Project address:

Architects are to be notified of any discrepancies.
Contractors must check all dimensions on site.
This drawing is subject to copyright laws and is for use on this 
project only.
This drawing is to be used solely for the information as titled only.
For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross 
referenced drawings.
To be read in conjunction with relevant design 
standards/protocols

Planning

1 CARDALE PARK, BECKWITH HEAD ROAD

HARROGATE, N.YORKSHIRE, HG3 1RZ
WWW.SSA-ARCHITECTS.CO.UK

T: 01423 856999

OriginatorProject Level Role No.TypeBuilding

P3

1 : 200

6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 009

March 22

Woodside Ave, Telford

Woodside Ave, Telford

Streetscene and Visuals

Exemplar HC

1 : 200
Street Scene - Woodside Avenue

Indicative Visuals

Rev Date Description Drn Cd

P0 08.04.22 First Issue AR MF

P1 11.04.22 Planning submission AR MF

P2 13.05.22 Lift shaft added AR MF

P3 15.06.22 Updated with updated design AR MF

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6a TWC/2021/0101 - Yard 5, Rookery Road, Telford, Shropshire, TF2 9BW
	1. Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A4PR


	2. Site Layout Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2-A3PRB



	6b TWC/2022/0573 - Former Woodside Social Club & land adjacent, Woodside Avenue, Woodside, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location Plan
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 002 - Location Plan


	2. Existing Site Plan
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 00- XX- DR-A-001 - Topographical Survey
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 003 - Existing Site Plan
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 004 - Proposed Site Plan


	3. Proposed Site Plan
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 004 - Proposed Site Plan


	4. Proposed Ground Floor
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 01- 00- DR-A-100 - Proposed Ground Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 01- DR-A-101 - Proposed First Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 02- DR-A-102 - Proposed Second Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 03- DR-A-103 - Proposed Roof Plan
	6653- SSA- 01- XX-DR-A-200 - Proposed Elevations


	5. Proposed First Floor
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 01- 00- DR-A-100 - Proposed Ground Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 01- DR-A-101 - Proposed First Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 02- DR-A-102 - Proposed Second Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 03- DR-A-103 - Proposed Roof Plan
	6653- SSA- 01- XX-DR-A-200 - Proposed Elevations


	6. Proposed Second Floor
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 01- 00- DR-A-100 - Proposed Ground Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 01- DR-A-101 - Proposed First Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 02- DR-A-102 - Proposed Second Floor
	6653- SSA- 01- 03- DR-A-103 - Proposed Roof Plan
	6653- SSA- 01- XX-DR-A-200 - Proposed Elevations


	7. Proposed Elevations
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 01- XX-DR-A-200 - Proposed Elevations


	8. Proposed Roof Plan
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 01- 04- DR-A-103 - Proposed Roof Plan


	9. Streetscene and Visuals
	Sheets
	6653- SSA- 00- XX- DR-A-001 - Topographical Survey
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 003 - Existing Site Plan
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 004 - Proposed Site Plan
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 005 - Proposed Perimeter Fencing
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 006 - Proposed Smoking Shelter
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 007 - Proposed Cycle Store
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 008 - Proposed Bin Store
	6653- SSA- 00-XX-DR-A- 009 - Streetscene and Visuals
	6653- SSA- 01-XX-DR-A- 201 - Proposed Site Elevations




